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Situated on a slight knoll near the road and facing south down the
Fishar River bottom is the two-story frams house of Bernard Franklin. The
five-bay structure rests on a stone foundation and features asymmetrical
fenestration at both levels of the main facada. Supported by six heavy
chamfered posts, the well-executed shed porch with a molded cornice runs
the length of the first floor main facade. The east bay and the two west
bays of the first floor, main facade, contain windows with nine-over-nine
sash; the central two bays contain wood-grainsd doors set very near each
other. FEach door has six raised panels and is surmounted by a four-light
transom. The second floor, has four unevenly spaced windows also with
nine-over~six sash. The ‘sash arrangement of the facade carries around the
house, and all windows have simple. architraves. Flush shsathing above a

baaded baseboard is used in the srea protected by the porch. The balustrade

of the porch is gone but a beaded board at the end of the facade shows the
outline of the profile of the handrail and of the baluster base support. A
molded box cornice across the main and rear facades has returns at the ends
of the cornice which do not enter the wall of the side elevations.

The east end is dominated by a sturdy, double shoulder chimney of
brick laid in Flemish bond. There is a door to the south which is said to
have been connecled by a low bridge to the kitchen which no longsr exists.
To the north of this chimnsy is a window which still has its fized-louvar
blinds. The second floor has only one window to the south of the chimnay,
and there are paired atitic windows with four-over-four sash. The wast end
has a similar chimney with the date, 1799, painted near the top shouldsr
(north side) and pairaed windows at all thras levels. The basemant sntrance
to the north of this chimnsy, has a door made of vertical boards which has
a wooden box lock and strap hinges. ‘

The.knoll on which the house stands drops sharply behind the house
with the stons foundation being about four feet high on the rear facade.

A door is located roughly in the center of this side and resembles the fron

doors but lacks the wood graining. There are two windows to the west of th
door and one to the east. The second story has two windows, one at each
end; but there is evidence that a third existed in the second bay from the
wast end. Whatever arrangemant was used in getting from the back door to
the ground no longer exists. Dvidence indicates that there was probably
only a flight of steps or a very -small porch.

Basically a Quaker style plan, the house has its two small rooms to
the east with the east front door leading into the south room. The wast
front door leads into the great room which occupies the wast half of the
house and contains the stair. Crude partitions have recently been installe
which gives the house a central stair hall and dividas the great room into
two smaller onss. Fortunately, little damage was done to the original
fabric.

The first floor has a handsome wainscot consisting of horizontal
raised panels with moldad fillets below a molded chair rail which also
serves as the window sills. The wainscot has interesting wood graining,

as do the doors which have six pansls raised on molded fillets. Throughout
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the house are simple architraves. The large, main room mantel is transitional
Georgian-Fedsral. It has two large horizontal flat panels with Federal mold-
ings above ths fire opaning, flanked. by broad planes with slender, supsrimpose
fluted pilasters which support a hsavy molded shelf that breaks out slightly
in the center and over each pilaster. The small first-floor rooms have corner
fireplaces, with the southeast room (originally the dining room) having a less
alaborate version of the main room mantel and the northeast room having a
simple mantel which has a square fire opening surmounted by one horizontal
flat panel. '

The Federal stair, which rises along the east wall of the main room just
past the door to the southeast room, has marbleizing along its string, as well
as on the risers and baseboard. Slender balusters support the rounded hand-
rail which begins abruptly as it passes over a slender, squara newsl which
tapers upward, and the handrail ramps to its conclusion as the stair reaches
its first turn near the rear wall. Simulated panels are painted on the dado
below the chair rail as it climbs to the point where the stair winds to ra-
varse its direction and reach the second floor.

The second floor appears to have originally reflectad the first-floor
plan but was modified at an sarly date to give a central-hall plan, two rooms
deep. The handsoms wainscot of the firgst floor is repsatad on tha sacond but
“the added partitions were made with horizontal sheathing in the dado bansath
a distinctly Federal chair rail as opposed to the more transitional one of
the original work. A semi-enclosed stair rises in the southsast cornsr of
the hall, but pansls in the wainscot bshind it indicate that this may not
have been its original position and that it may hava been moved during the
early renovation. There are two fire openings on the second floor: that in
the southwest room with a square fire opening surmounted by a horizontal flat
panel, and that in the southsast room is a corner fireplace with an arched
opening surmounted by a horizontal flat pansl. The second floor exhibits
~several forms of marbleizing and wood graining in every room with the use of
various color combinations. :
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Bernard Franklin House is a handsome Georgian-Federal dwslling
retaining a remarkable amount of its original fabric, including fine pansl-
ing throughout the house with interesting marblelzing and wood graining
It is by far the most ambitious early houss in Surry County. The signifi-
cance of the house is further enhanced by its association with Jessa Franklin,
son of the builder, who is said to have sslected the land for his fathaer's
new home. This is the only extant reminder of North Carolina's twentileth
governor and noted senator, who was Surry County's most outstanding histori

cal figure.

{

Bernard Franklin, of Orange County, Virginla, bsgan buying land in
Surry County, North Carolina, with the help of his son, Jesse, who scouted
the land for him, about tha time of the American Ravolution. Tradition has
it that his family settled in Surry County about this same time, living in
log houses which Jesse had built until the "mansion house! could bz bullt
in 1799. Since Jegse's own house burned, this house 1s ths only visiblae
remindsr of Bernard Franklin's most illustrious son. Jesse entered ths
Continental army and before the war was over had risen to the rank of major
In 1793 and 179l he was elected a member of the North Carolina General
Assembly and re-elected in 1797 and 1798. In 1805 he wa= elected a msmber
of the state senate. In the meantime, from 1795 to 1797, he was a member
of Congress. In 1799, as the state swung from Federalist domination to ths
Jeffersonian Republicanism he was elected to the United States Senate and
sarvad as president pro tem, paralleling North Carolina arch-Rapublican
Nathanicl Macon's service as spesker of the Houzs. Franklin was re-glectsed
to the Senate in 1807. Tn 1816 President Monros appointed Senator Franklin
commissioner to make a tresaty with the Chickassaw Indians; he cappsd his
political carser by baing elected the twentieth governor of North Carolins
in 1820. He died in Surry County in 1823.

The Bernard Franklin House passed from the Franklin family whan Jesse
D. Franklin, grandson of Bernard, sold the 1,300-acre plantation to Saint
Clair (Sinclare) McMicKla on 6 May 1847 "but at the same time excepting tha
lot called the grave yard . . . to remain the property of said Jesse D.
Franklin." The McMickle family held the propsrty into the twentieth century
when it passed by marriage to James Blevins. The property was purchasaed by
the Surry County Historical Society in 1972 from Sam Blavins, and 1ts
restoration is planrsd.
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